

 AGENDA FOR THE 


 
 


CITY OF PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION  
REGULAR MEETING  


 
Monday, August 14, 2023 


7:00 P.M.  
 Via Zoom Videoconference and In Person 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 


 
WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 


• IN PERSON. Attendance at the Pinole City Council Chambers (2131 Pear St). 


• LIVE ON CHANNEL 26. The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the 
City’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us. The meeting can be viewed again as a retelecast 
on Channel 26. 


• VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us. and remain 
archived on the site for five (5) years. 


• ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCE. Zoom details are included below. 


• If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, 
please contact Planning Manager David Hanham at (510) 724-8912 or 
dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. 


HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 


In Person:  


Attend meeting at the Pinole City Council Chambers, fill out a yellow public comment card and 
submit it to the Planning Manager. 


Via Zoom: 


Members of the public may submit a live remote public comment via Zoom video conferencing. 
Download the Zoom mobile app from the Apple Appstore or Google Play. If you are using a 
desktop computer, you can test your connection to Zoom by clicking here. Zoom also allows you 
to join the meeting by phone. 


From a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android:     


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86505375301  


  OR 


https://zoom.us/join 


Webinar ID: 865 0537 5301 


By phone:   +1 (669) 900-6833  or  +1 (253) 215-8782  or  +1 (346) 248-7799    


• Speakers will be asked to provide their name and city of residence, although 
providing this is not required for participation. 


• Each speaker will be afforded up to 5 minutes to speak. 
• Speakers will be muted until their opportunity to provide public comment. 



http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us

https://www.zoom.us/join

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86505375301

https://zoom.us/join





PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
August 14, 2023  PAGE 2 
 
When the Chair opens the comment period for the item you wish to speak on, please use the 
“raise hand” feature (or press *9 if connecting via telephone) which will alert staff that you have a 
comment to provide. Once you have been identified to speak, please check to make sure you 
have unmuted yourself in the videoconference application (or press *6 if connecting via 
telephone). 
 
WRITTEN COMMENTS 
Please submit public comments to Planning Staff before the meeting via email to 
dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. Please include your full name, city of residence and agenda item you 
are commenting on. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special assistance to 
participate in a City meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the Development Services Department at (510) 
724-8912.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed 
will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide 
accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 


 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION:  
 


Persons wishing to speak on an item listed on the Agenda may do so when the Chair asks for 
comments in favor of or in opposition to the item under consideration. After all of those persons 
wishing to speak have done so, the hearing will be closed and the matter will be discussed 
amongst the Commission prior to rendering a decision.  
 
Any person may appeal an action of the Planning Commission or of the Planning Manager by 
filing an appeal with the City Clerk, in writing, within ten (10) days of such action.  Following a 
Public Hearing, the City Council may act to confirm, modify or reverse the action of the Planning 
Commission and the Planning Commission may act to confirm, modify, or reverse the action of 
the Planning Manager. The cost to appeal a decision is $500 and a minimum $2,500 deposit fee.  
 
Note: If you challenge a decision of the Commission regarding a project in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing or in writing 
delivered to the City of Pinole at, or prior to, the public hearing.  
 


A. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
B1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
B2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT: Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone 


people, who are the traditional custodians of this land. We pay our respects to the Ohlone 
elders, past, present, and future, who call this place, Ohlone Land, the land that Pinole 
sits upon, their home. We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together and 
growing as a community. We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and 
support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of 
mutual respect and understanding. 


 
B3. ROLL CALL 



mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us





PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
August 14, 2023  PAGE 3 
 
 
C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD: 
 


The public may address the Planning Commission on items that are within its jurisdiction 
and not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Planning Commissioners may discuss the matter 
brought to their attention, but by State law (Ralph M. Brown Act), action must be deferred 
to a future meeting.  Time allowed: five (5) minutes each. 


 
 
D. MEETING MINUTES: 
 


1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from June 26, 2023 
 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 


At the beginning of an item, the Chair will read the description of that item as stated on 
the Agenda. The City Staff will then give a brief presentation of the proposed project. The 
Commission may then ask Staff questions about the item.  


 
For those items listed as Public Hearings, the Chair will open the public hearing and ask 
the applicant if they wish to make a presentation. Those persons in favor of the project will 
then be given an opportunity to speak followed by those who are opposed to the project. 
The applicant will then be given an opportunity for rebuttal.  


 
The Public Hearing will then be closed and the Commission may discuss the item amongst 
themselves and ask questions of Staff. The Commission will then vote to approve, deny, 
approve in a modified form, or continue the matter to a later date for a decision. The Chair 
will announce the Commission's decision and advise the audience of the appeal 
procedure. 


 
Note: No Public Hearings will begin after 11:00 p.m. Items still remaining on the 
agenda after 11:00 p.m. will be held over to the next meeting. 


 
  


1. Comprehensive Design Review (PL23-0003 & DR23-01) 2550 Appian Way)  
 
Request:  Consideration of a request to enclose a 1,960 square foot parking area 


below the first floor of the existing commercial building to create additional 
three areas and to close off utilities areas to deter congregation and 
nuisances. The project qualifies for a CEQA exemption under CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15301. 


 
 Applicant:  Pinole Terrace LLC 
  Athan Magganas 
  2550 Appian Way #201 
  Pinole, CA 94564 
 
Location:  2550 Appian Way (APN: 426-391-001) 
 
Planner:  David Hanham 


 







PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
August 14, 2023  PAGE 4 
 


 
F. OLD BUSINESS:  
 
 None 
 
 
G. NEW BUSINESS:  
 


None 
 
 


H. CITY PLANNER'S/COMMISSIONER'S REPORT: 
 
 
I. COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 


 
J. NEXT MEETING(S):  
 


Planning Commission Regular Meeting, August 28, 2023 at 7:00PM  
 
 


K. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
POSTED: August 11, 2023 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David Hanham 
Planning Manager 







  


 


              June 26, 2023     1 


DRAFT 1 


 2 


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 3 


PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 4 


 5 


June 26, 2023   6 


 7 


THIS MEETING WAS HELD IN A HYBRID FORMAT  8 


BOTH IN-PERSON AND ZOOM TELECONFERENCE  9 


 10 


 11 


A.        CALL TO ORDER:    7:02 p.m. 12 


 13 


B1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 14 


 15 


B2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the 16 


Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of this land.  We pay our respects to 17 


the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone Land, the land 18 


that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming 19 


together and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their 20 


stewardship and support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue 21 


our relationship of mutual respect and understanding. 22 


 23 


B3. ROLL CALL  24 


 25 


Commissioners Present: Bender, Lam-Julian, Martinez, Sandoval, Vice Chairperson 26 


Menis, Chairperson Benzuly  27 


      28 


Commissioners Absent: Banuelos  29 


 30 


Staff Present:   David Hanham, Planning Manager   31 


    Alex Mog, Assistant City Attorney 32 


    Justin Shiu, Contract Planner 33 


   34 


C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 35 


 36 


 There were no comments from the public.  37 


 38 


D. MEETING MINUTES 39 


 40 


1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from May 22, 2023  41 


 42 


Commissioner Bender requested a revision to Page 8, Lines 39 through 41 as follows:   43 


 44 


He [Commissioner Bender] hoped this project would not exacerbate the existing 45 


freeway like conditions on San Pablo Avenue and noted there was no information on 46 


pedestrian safety.   47 


 48 


                              49 


 50 


ITEM D1 







  


 


              June 26, 2023     2 


MOTION with a Roll Call vote to approve the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from 1 


May 22, 2023, as amended.   2 


   3 


MOTION:  Menis  SECONDED:  Bender        APPROVED:  5-0-2 4 


                                      ABSENT:  Banuelos  5 


            ABSTAIN:  Martinez 6 


  7 


E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None  8 


         9 


F. OLD BUSINESS:  None  10 


 11 


G. NEW BUSINESS:  12 


 13 


1. Objective Development Design Standards (ODDS)   14 


Introduction to the start of work on preparing objective development design 15 


standards, the proposed timeline, and the role of the Planning Commission/Ad-16 


Hoc Committee.  17 


  18 


Planning Manager David Hanham reported the Planning Commission had been provided an 19 


additional attachment to the June 26, 2023 staff report, titled Objective Design and 20 


Development Standards:  Timeline of Milestones Later Revised:  June 2023.    21 


 22 


Mr. Hanham presented the staff report dated June 26, 2023, and explained that pursuant to 23 


Program 13 of the City’s Adopted Housing Element, the City was developing objective 24 


development design standards (ODDS) for the review of multi-family housing and mixed-25 


use development applications.  In addition to Senate Bill (SB) 9 projects, Housing Element 26 


Program 13 had been developed in response to state housing laws, including the Housing 27 


Accountability Act (HAA), SB 330, and SB 35.  28 


 29 


Those laws significantly restricted localities from applying non-objective (subjective) 30 


development standards to the review of a housing project of two or more units.  Only 31 


adopted objective standards that did not require interpretation would be allowed to be 32 


used to deny eligible housing projects.  The implementation of Program 13 would ensure 33 


that the City had a robust set of adopted objective development standards that would 34 


provide multi-family developers with more predictability and a clear and streamlined review 35 


and approval process.  In turn, the City would set clear expectations for the design of multi-36 


family developments in Pinole.  37 


 38 


Mr. Hanham requested the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee assist in the development 39 


of the standards that would ultimately be reviewed by the full Planning Commission for a 40 


recommendation for adoption by the City Council. The ODDS work included review and 41 


updates to the following: The Three Corridor Specific Plan (last updated: 2020); Zoning 42 


Code (last updated: 2020) and Old Town Design Guidelines (last updated: 1997).   43 


 44 


Mr. Hanham recommended the Planning Commission take the following actions for the 45 


purpose of creating objective standards for eligible multi-family projects and carry out the 46 


provisions of Housing Element Program 13: provide feedback regarding the proposed 47 


timeline (Attachment 1), Schedule of Activities and assign the Ad-Hoc Design Review 48 


Committee to work with staff to prepare a set of amendments to the Pinole Municipal Code 49 


(PMC) Three Corridor Specific Plan and the Old Town Design Guidelines.  50 







  


 


              June 26, 2023     3 


Responding to the Commission Mr. Hanham and Assistant City Attorney Alex Mog 1 


clarified:   2 


 3 


• State housing law defined a housing development project as anything with two or 4 


more units, which covered all housing projects with the exception of one single-5 


family unit being built.   6 


 7 


• The Old Town Design Guidelines, which had last been updated in 1997 would be 8 


the basis for the discussion for the ODDS for Old Town since that was the latest 9 


adopted map.   10 


 11 


• A typographical error was identified in the last sentence of the second paragraph 12 


of Page 3 of the staff report under Table 1: Subjective vs Objective Standards, with 13 


staff clarifying the statement that read:  If an application, should be stricken.     14 


 15 


• Discretionary versus ministerial design review was again clarified as outlined on 16 


Pages 4 and 5 of the June 26, 2023 staff report.  Ministerial review would not 17 


describe who the decision maker was but described the review.  Ministerial review 18 


was essentially a checkbox.  It was sometimes possible that would be a Planning 19 


Commission approval or a staff level decision depending on the language in the 20 


Zoning Code.  There were some staff level permits that allowed for discretionary 21 


elements with the discretion exercised by staff (Planning Manager).  There were 22 


also cases separate from ministerial review that were a mix of both discretionary 23 


and ministerial review.  The Zoning Code determined who the decision maker 24 


would be for certain types of projects but state law occasionally superseded that.   25 


 26 


• An overview of the Housing Accountability Act (HAA) was provided and which 27 


established the State’s overarching policy that a local government may not deny, 28 


reduce the density of, or make infeasible affordable or market rate housing 29 


development projects, emergency shelters, or farm worker housing that are 30 


consistent with objective local development standards. This provides developers 31 


more certainty about the standards, conditions, and policies that apply to their 32 


projects.  Local Governments that deny a project due to subjective standards (e.g., 33 


standards that are not objective) could be a violation of the HAA.   34 


 35 


• There was room in the HAA for the Planning Commission to exercise some 36 


discretion on Conditions of Approval within reason and depending on the 37 


application and how State law and the Zoning Code determined who the decision 38 


maker would be.   39 


 40 


• The City Council did not adopt the Planning Commission recommendations for 41 


updating the Old Town Design Guidelines but the Ad-Hoc Design Review 42 


Committee may refer to any materials it wanted to review that may be helpful and 43 


could review the draft recommendations that had not been adopted by the City 44 


Council.   45 


 46 


• The City could not adopt any new subjective design standards, although the 47 


subjective design standards the City currently had could be maintained and 48 


depending on what approval was being sought there may still be discretion.    49 







  


 


              June 26, 2023     4 


As an example, if someone applied for SB 35 approval that involved a ministerial 1 


process and there was no discretion the City may execute.  Projects recently 2 


approved in the City were governed by the HAA whereby the City could not deny 3 


a project if the project met the City’s objective standards.  The point of adopting 4 


ODDS was to have in place clear rules so that the projects the City got were the 5 


projects the City wanted.   6 


 7 


• If someone was seeking discretionary approval, there was some “wiggle room” to 8 


use discretion on elements of a project.  As an example, if a project was seeking 9 


ministerial approval, it must be approved however it was applied.  If seeking 10 


discretionary approval and the City did not have that standard it could not deny the 11 


project but may approve it subject to conditions.  At a certain point, the conditions 12 


could amount to being so onerous or significant that it could be a denial of a project.   13 


 14 


• Page 4, Table 3:  Regulatory Document Contents, as shown in the staff report was 15 


clarified.   16 


 17 


• State Density Bonus Law was clarified and allowed a project to obtain a density 18 


bonus if a certain amount of affordable housing was provided and allowed a 19 


developer to go over and above a city’s density cap.  The amount of the density 20 


bonus depended on the percentage of units that were affordable and how they 21 


were affordable.  Concessions and waivers were also clarified and allowed a 22 


developer not to comply with certain standards a city had adopted, although those 23 


concessions and waivers were limited.  Language could be added to the City’s 24 


findings that a project complied with the City of Pinole’s standards or complied with 25 


the standards subject to the use of a density bonus.  A program had been included 26 


in the Housing Element to update the City’s Density Bonus Ordinance with the 27 


ordinance to be updated on a separate track from the development of the ODDS.   28 


 29 


• Page 7 of the staff report, Old Town Design Guidelines, Historic Structures 30 


required the following:  Address the protection of historic structures in consultation 31 


with qualified cultural resource consultants.  As part of this standard, a qualified 32 


cultural resources expert would be required to confirm the historic structure and 33 


use Department of Interior standards to repair historic structures.  As to whether 34 


the City could assist a Mom and Pop or small business to comply with this 35 


standard, as an example, the City Council may choose to provide assistance but 36 


those design guidelines only applied prospectively to new projects.     37 


 38 


• Existing buildings with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request may use the same 39 


subjective standards but anything new must use the new standards.  Objective 40 


standards could be enforced by the City and if not would become a gray area in 41 


terms of how far was too far.   42 


 43 


• Attachment 1, Schedule of Activities was clarified in terms of the number of Ad-44 


Hoc Design Review Committee meetings that may be needed to review the ODDS.  45 


Staff had currently shown six meetings on the timeline.   46 


 47 


 48 


 49 







  


 


              June 26, 2023     5 


• The City had contracted with professional planning consulting firms WRT and 1 


Sustainable Community Planning (SCP) to evaluate and make recommendations 2 


for updating the City’s three major design documents; the Zoning and Subdivision 3 


Code of the Pinole Municipal Code (PMC), the Three Corridor Specific Plan and 4 


the Old Town Design Standards. After reviewing the three documents, the 5 


consulting team and staff had catalogued all existing standards as being either 6 


objective or subjective.  All existing subjective standards had been evaluated in 7 


terms of ease of conversion to an objective standard.  Recommendations had been 8 


produced regarding how to best refine, and in many cases develop, objective 9 


development standards.   10 


 11 


Based on Attachment 1, Schedule of Activities, the Specific Plan was the first 12 


document the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee would be asked to review for 13 


feedback since it led to the other two documents.  Also, as shown in Attachment 14 


1, staff intended the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee to meet and work on each 15 


of the three documents one at a time, with the last meeting of the Ad-Hoc Design 16 


Review Committee to ensure all documents were in line and met all criteria.  If 17 


there were other subjective standards desired to be changed beyond the three 18 


documents that had been identified, that could be done but most of the work would 19 


focus on design standards.   20 


 21 


• Dates could be added to the timeline as shown in Attachment 1, if necessary.      22 


 23 


• Once all of the work had been completed and pursuant to the timeline in 24 


Attachment 1, everything done by the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee would 25 


come back to the full Planning Commission as a complete package prior to 26 


consideration by the City Council.   27 


 28 


• Once the ODDS had been established, a consultant would likely be brought on 29 


board to prepare the entire package that would include diagrams including existing 30 


diagrams that could be in the documents.   31 


 32 


Mr. Hanham requested a motion and second to direct the Ad-Hoc Design Review 33 


Committee to work with staff to prepare a set of recommended amendments to the Pinole 34 


Municipal Code (PMC), Three Corridor Specific Plan, and the Old Town Design 35 


Guidelines.   He would schedule a date and time for the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee 36 


to meet with the Committee, currently comprised of Commissioners Martinez and Bender, 37 


and Vice Chairperson Menis.   38 


 39 


Vice Chairperson Menis reported on ex parté communications having sent out a notice of 40 


this meeting to his email list.   41 


 42 


PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  43 


 44 


There were no comments from the public.   45 


 46 


PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  47 


 48 


 49 







  


 


              June 26, 2023     6 


MOTION to assign the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee to work with staff to prepare a 1 


set of recommended amendments to the Pinole Municipal Code (PMC), Three Corridor 2 


Specific Plan, and the Old Town Design Guidelines.  3 


   4 


MOTION:  Martinez  SECONDED:  Menis            APPROVED:  6-0-1 5 


                                      ABSENT:  Banuelos  6 


           7 


H. CITY PLANNER’S / COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT   8 


 9 


Mr. Hanham reported the City had submitted for reimbursement of funding pursuant to SB 2 10 


and League of California Cities Grants for the Housing Element.  The Housing Element had 11 


been resubmitted to the State and staff was hopeful for a quick review and approval of 12 


substantial conformance.  Staff continued to work on the building permit process and 13 


conditions of approval for a number of projects including Pinole Vista, BCRE and Appian 14 


Village.  Staff was also working on a timeline for the Parklet Regulations with a couple of 15 


Conditional Use Permits (CUPs) to be presented to the Planning Commission at a future 16 


meeting.   17 


 18 


Mr. Hanham also reported the entitlements for the Safeway project at Tara Hills had expired 19 


on June 20, 2023.  Any new work would require resubmittal to the City. The former Kmart 20 


property was in the process of a ministerial Lot Line Adjustment (LLA) with building plans 21 


anticipated to be presented to the City in late fall/early winter.  A demolition permit for the 22 


property was expected to be issued in the next few months.  Also, the lot across the street 23 


from Pinole Valley High School had an interested party but staff had yet to meet with that 24 


party.  In addition, staff anticipated the developer for Pinole Shores II would submit the view 25 


point renderings to staff this week, to be reviewed by the Ad-Hoc Design Review Committee.   26 


 27 


Commissioner Menis reported he had spoken with a representative from the County 28 


Transportation Department at the recent Pinole Car Show, who had expressed interest in 29 


reviewing the patches of sidewalk in need of repair along San Pablo Avenue (near the church 30 


with falling down scree) and the area west of the Appian Way and San Pablo Avenue 31 


intersection that had no sidewalk.   32 


 33 


I. COMMUNICATIONS:  None  34 


 35 


J. NEXT MEETING 36 


 37 


The next meeting of the Planning Commission to be a Regular Planning Commission 38 


Meeting scheduled for July 10, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.  39 


 40 


K. ADJOURNMENT:   8:13 p.m.    41 


 42 


 Transcribed by:   Reviewed and edited by:   43 


 44 


 45 


 Sherri D. Lewis    City Staff 46 


 Transcriber  47 







Item E1 
 


  


 
TO:   PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
FROM:  David Hanham, Planning Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Addition of Commercial/Professional Office Space at Pinole Terrace Center  


 
DATE:   August 14, 2023 


 
 


Property Owner: 
 


Pinole Terrace LLC, Contact: Athan Magganas 
2550 Appian Way 
Pinole, CA 94564 


Applicant: 
 


Pinole Terrace LLC, Contact: Athan Magganas 
2550 Appian Way 
Pinole, CA 94564 


File:    PL23-0003/Comprehensive Design Review (CDR) DR 23-01  


Location: 2550 Appian Way, Pinole CA 94564 


Assessor Parcel Numbers:            426-391-001 


Total Area:   2.4 acres/250,905.6 sf (square feet) 


General Plan Land Use Designation:   MUSA/Mixed Use Sub Area  


Specific Plan Land Use Designation:  MUSA, Appian Way Corridor /Mixed Use Sub-Area  


Zoning Classification: CMU, Commercial Mixed Use) 


Review Authority: Comprehensive Design Review - Planning Commission – Pinole 
Municipal Code (PMC) Section Table 17.10.060-01 
 
California Environmental Quality Act Determination – Planning 
Commission – CA Public Resources Code Section 15301 


BACKGROUND 


The property at 2550 Appian Way (“Pinole Terrace”) is owned by the Limited Liability Corporation “Pinole 
Terrace, LLC.” The Pinole Terrace Center was built in 1987 and has been home to a number of restaurants, 
professional offices, and personal services that serve the local community and beyond. Access to the 
project site is from Appian Way. The project area is bound by the Pinole Vista Shopping Center to the 
north, Days Inn Motel to the south, Appian Way to the east and Pinole Vista Shopping Center to the west. 
The site is currently developed with two two-story commercial buildings totaling 37,000 square feet. In 
1991, Pinole Terrace enclosed a portion of parking area underneath Building One. 
 


Memorandum  







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 2 


  
 
Building One is a two and a half-story, 20,000 sf building. It sits at the most northwestern portion of the 
site, adjacent to the neighboring Pinole Vista Shopping Center. The primary access to Building One is 
through the lower level which contains an accounting office, two restaurants, and personal service 
businesses. The upper story of Building One contains professional offices.  
 
Building One is built into the hillside, and therefore also features six covered, semi-enclosed parking 
spaces underneath the lower level. These spaces are reserved for public use.  The property owner has 
reported to planning staff that the Pinole Terrace Center has had security issues in this area due to the 
open and unsecured parking stalls. 
 
Building Two is a two-story 17,000 sf building and sits at the most southeastern portion of the site, 
adjacent to the neighboring Days Inn motel. The primary access to Building Two is through the lower level 
which features a restaurant and personal services businesses. The upper story of Building Two consists of 
professional offices. 
 
The site is currently partially landscaped with sidewalks and pedestrian paths of travel connecting 
Buildings One and Two. Overall, 131 parking spaces are provided throughout the entire center.  
 
The property owner is proposing to convert existing covered and partially enclosed utility spaces and six 
parking spaces underneath Building One into an additional 1,960 sf of leasable commercial/professional 
office. The proposed project requires retroactive approval due to the premature partial enclosure prior 
to receiving entitlements and building permits. The action has added an approximate 1,000 additional sf 
of commercial area and removed three parking stalls. The owner has requested formal approval of the 
proposed project, which requires Comprehensive Design Review and a subsequent building permit. If 
granted, the permits would allow the owner to complete the work started in 2022 and enclose an 
additional 960 sf of floor area and remove three parking stalls. 
 
Figure 1 shows the site location and neighborhood context. 
 
  







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 3 


  
 
Figure 1 – Site Location  


 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


The project site, spanning approximately 2.4 acres, consists of two buildings and is located at 2550 Appian 
Way. The applicant is proposing to construct two commercial/professional office spaces totaling 
approximately 1,960 square feet. The construction of the two leasable tenant spaces will be in the parking 
spaces underneath Building One. The project will realign the existing open air diagonal parking at the 
northwestern edge of the project site into parallel spaces. A new trash enclosure will be built in the 
southwest corner of the property. Currently, there are none. The project will add a utility room on the 
east side of the building for the two new commercial spaces. Additional landscaping will be added in the 
southwest corner of the property. The applicant will also be required to replace any landscaping that was 
included the original project area. Landscape plans will be reviewed and approved. The new project area 
will increase the total parking area from 21 to 26 parking spaces. The project site will have additional 
lighting on the rear of Building One consistent with the existing lighting that is currently on the building. 


Project Location 


(Pinole Terrace Center) 


Building One 


Building Two 


Addition Area 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 4 


  
 
The applicant will install small wall mounted lights on the rear portion of the building See Figure 2 – 
Existing Wall Mounted Lighting above the doors The rest of the complex will remain the same and is not 
a part of this project. The color of the project will match the existing tan color of the building. The stucco 
and textured walls used in the new construction are consistent with the existing structure. The project 
will create two new commercial spaces at this time. 
 
Figure 2 – Existing Wall Mounted Lighting 


 


Required Land Use Approvals 


Entitlements and required City of Pinole approvals for the project include Comprehensive Design Review 
and a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) determination. Pursuant to PMC Table 17.10.060-1, 
the Planning Commission has approval authority of the Comprehensive Design Review, and CEQA 
determination.  


Site Parameters 


The site is bound by the Pinole Vista Shopping Center to the north, Days Inn to the South, Appian Way to 
the East and the Pinole Vista Shopping Center to the West. Surrounding land uses include a Pinole Vista 
Shopping Center as well as vacant commercial land to the west of the property. To the north, there is the 
main portion of Pinole Vista Shopping Center, existing single family residential dwellings to the east and 
an existing business (Days Inn) to the south. The project site is typically flat, however, the property slopes 
down from the southeast of the property to the northwest portion of the property. The project area 
underneath Building One is at the low portion of the property. 
 


ANALYSIS  


This section of the report will analyze the Pinole Terrace entitlement application and the findings that are 
required to be met in order to be granted approval from the Planning Commission. This portion of the 
report will also state the application’s consistency with the City’s General Plan, the Three Corridor Specific 
Plan, and the Zoning Ordinance. As part of the consistency evaluation, the Planning Commission is 
required to make specific findings and other consideration consistent with Chapter 17.12 (Entitlements) 
of the PMC in order to approve the Comprehensive Design Review.  







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 5 


  
 


General Plan Consistency  


The property located at 2550 Appian Way has a General Plan Land Use Designation of “MUSA” (Mixed 
Use Service Area). The Mixed-Use Sub-Area encourages mixed residential and commercial development 
that is united by transit and pedestrian improvements, parks, and public spaces. This land use designation 
allows all types of commercial and residential uses as either a single use or in combination with other 
allowable commercial and residential uses at densities and intensities that support transit service. The 
designation is intended to encourage ground floor, pedestrian-friendly retail sales and service uses with 
upper floors of office and residential uses. Commercial activity can include a range of retail activity from 
neighborhood convenience stores and community shopping centers to regionally oriented specialty 
stores, and office uses, including administrative, professional, medical, and dental offices. Residential uses 
may include single-family and multi-family residential uses.  


 


POLICIES 


The Pinole Terrace project helps to implement numerous policies within different elements of the 
General Plan including the Community Character Element, Land Use and Economic Development 
Element, Circulation Element, Health and Safety Element, the Natural Resources and Open Space 
Element, and the Sustainability Element. The policies below are a partial list of the most relevant 
to the Pinole Terrace project.  
 
Community Character Element 
 


 POLICY CC.1.1 All new development and redevelopment shall adhere to the basic 
principles of high-quality urban design and architecture including, but 
not limited to, human-scaled design, pedestrian orientation, and 
interconnectivity of street layout, siting buildings to highlight 
important intersections, entryways, focal points, and landmarks.  


POLICY CC.1.2  Require all new development to incorporate high-quality site design, 
architecture and planning to enhance the overall quality of the built 
environment in Pinole and create a visually interesting and 
aesthetically pleasing town environment. 


POLICY CC.1.5 Encourage project compatibility, interdependence, and support with 
neighboring uses, especially between commercial and mixed-use 
centers and the surrounding residential neighborhoods. Uses should 
relate to one another with pedestrian connections, transit options, 
shared parking, landscaping, public spaces, and the orientation and 
design of buildings. 


Land Use and Economic Development Element 


POLICY LU.3.2 Ensure high quality site planning, architecture and landscape design 
for all new residential development, renovation, or remodel. 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 6 


  
 


POLICY LU.4.1 Ensure all new development, renovation or remodeling preserves 
and strengthens Pinole’s residential neighborhoods by requiring 
projects to be harmoniously designed and integrated with the 
existing neighborhood. 


POLICY LU.7.1  Provide sufficient land for commercial and industrial uses to allow for 
development that provides basic goods and services to Pinole 
residents. 


POLICY LU. 7.5 Ensure that new and existing developments can be adequately 
served by municipal services and facilities in accordance with City 
standards. New projects which require construction or expansion of 
public improvements shall pay their fair share of the costs necessary 
to improve or expand infrastructure to serve them, including street 
improvements, parks, water storage tanks, sewer and water service, 
and other public services. 


Circulation Element 


POLICY CE.1.1 Encourage strategic growth that concentrates future development 
along Pinole’s three primary transit corridors (San Pablo Avenue, 
Appian Way, and Pinole Valley Road). 


POLICY CE.1.4 Encourage maximum utilization of the existing public transit system 
and alternate modes of transportation in Pinole. 


POLICY CE.8.1 Require development to provide pedestrian walkways that are safe, 
interconnected, and accessible by all members of the community. 


Health and Safety Element    


POLICY HS.6.1 Promote and encourage walking and bicycling as viable forms of 
transportation to services, shopping, and employment.  


POLICY HS.7.3 Reduce the transport of runoff and surface pollutants off site. 


Natural Resources and Open Space Element 


ACTION OS.8.8.6 Require new development projects to incorporate facilities and 
measures to treat stormwater before discharge from the site. The 
facilities shall be included in required Stormwater Control Plans and 
sized to meet NPDES permit requirements. Projects shall protect 
water quality by incorporating Low Impact Development (LID) design 
to detain, treat, and infiltrate runoff by minimizing impervious area, 
such as use of pervious pavements and green roofs, disperse runoff 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 7 


  
 


to landscaped areas; and/or route runoff to rain gardens, cisterns, 
swales, and other small-scale facilities distributed throughout the 
project area.  


Sustainability Element  


 
POLICY SE.4.5  Pinole will continue to promote and support and require, where 


appropriate, the development of solar energy. 


POLICY SE.8.7 Work to improve Pinole’s pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure and 
to meet the needs of all pedestrians and bicyclists.   


Staff Comment: Based on the policies listed above from the General Plan in addition to the fact that the 
Pinole Terrace Center has been developed since 1987, the majority of improvements have been installed 
and are currently functioning. Also, the new construction is within the current footprint of Building One. 
Since, the Construction of Building One was in 1987, two new General Plans have been adopted. Both the 
first enclosure of parking underneath Building One and the new proposed construction have made this 
area more consistent with the policies of the General Plan. This project is correcting a number of 
infrastructure (e.g., additional sidewalks, additional ADA compliant parking spaces, increased number of 
parking spaces, new trap capture devices and trash enclosures, etc.) deficiencies as well as creating 
additional commercial space that is consistent with the policy of the General Plan.   
 
Staff Conclusion: Based on the discussion above, this project is consistent with the General Plan.  
 


Specific Plan and Zoning Consistency  


The Pinole Terrace Center is in the Appian Way 
Corridor of the Three Corridor Specific Plan.  The site, 
which consists of one parcel (APNs 426-391-001) has 
a Specific Plan Designation of MUSA/Appian Way 
Corridor. See Figure 3 for a map of the Specific Plan 
designation. Pinole Terrace is proposing to convert an 
existing, partially enclosed, parking area underneath 
an existing Building into new commercial/office 
development. The Specific Plan includes policies to 
help fulfill the Plan’s objectives. See Table 2 for the  
land use policies in the Specific Plan applicable to the 
proposed project. This table shows the project is 
consistent with the Specific Plan. 
  


Figure 3 – Specific Plan Designation 


Project Location 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 8 


  
 


Table 2 - Land Use Policies of the Three Corridor Specific Plan  
Applicable to the Pinole Terrace Development 


 


Land Use Policy 5 Support existing viable uses while encouraging a new mix of uses. 


Land Use Policy 6 Actively promote the “revitalization” of underutilized land. 


Land Use Policy 7 Promote a variety of retail uses that are compatible with a pedestrian 
environment 


Land Use Policy 9 Promote a variety of small retail and office space opportunities for 
small business. 


 
 


The Pinole Terrace project has a zoning a 
zoning designation of CMU (Commercial 
Mixed-Use). See Figure 4 for a map of the 
Zoning designation. The CMU Zoning 
designation requires at least 51 percent 
of the total floor area to be commercial 
retail and service use. The Pinole Terrace 
project is 100 percent commercial retail 
and office use.  


 
 


 
 
 
 


 


Overall Design of the Project DR-21-06 


Pinole Terrace is proposing to convert six spaces of existing, partially enclosed, parking space and 40 sf of 
utility space underneath an existing Building into 1,960sf of new commercial/office development. The 
scale and design of the project will match the existing space in the rear of the building. See Page 4 of the 
design package (Attachment B) for rear elevations that outline the new commercial spaces.   
 
Sidewalks will connect to the existing sidewalk of Building One to the new commercial spaces. 
Additionally, the parking lot in the rear of the Building One will be redesigned to allow for accessible access 
and new garbage enclosures (see Page 1 of the design package in Attachment B). By squaring off the 
parking area on the west side of property. It will increase the parking from by six spaces and will create 


Figure 4 – Zoning Designation 


Project Location 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 9 


  
 
additional opportunity for landscaping within the site, and to refresh the visual appeal and create a sense 
of continuity within the entire development.  
 


Comprehensive Design Review Findings 


In order to approve the Comprehensive Design Review, the Planning Commission must find for each of 
the required Comprehensive Design Review findings. Each finding is listed below followed by staff 
comment and conclusion. 
 


1.The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies with 
applicable zoning regulations, planned development, master plan or specific plan provisions, 
improvement standards, and other applicable standards and regulations adopted by the city. 
 
Staff Comment: General Plan and Specific Plan policies have been identified to satisfy consistency 
with the project. The project is consistent with Table 3 Development Standards for the City of 
Pinole base Zoning Districts. The project is consistent with Tables 6.16 through Table 6.19 and 
Figure 6.11 of the Appian Way Corridor Land Use and Development Standards. The Pinole Terrace 
project was reviewed and approved by the City in 1987. Since the completion of the original 
project, the only construction that has occurred was as similar conversion of carport area into 
commercial/tenant space underneath Building One which was permitted in the early 1990’s. 
 


TABLE 3 
 DEVELOPMENT STANDTARDS 


PINOLE TERRACE 
 


Development 
Standard 


 
Code Requirement 


 
Existing 


 
Compliance 


Setbacks  


Front  0-5 feet N/A 
 


N/A, no modification 
or additional 
development at 
front of property 


East Side 0 feet 20 feet 
 


Yes 


West Side  0 feet 30 feet 
 


Yes 


Rear  15 feet 25  Yes 
 


Height 4 stories/35 feet The Height of the Building One is 
25 feet. The project area enclosing 
existing space. There will be no 
change in the height of Building 
One.   


Yes 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 10 


  
 


Parking Retail Sales, Banks 
1 space per 300 sq. ft. 
of gross floor area 
 
Restaurants, Bars, 
and Night Clubs 
1 space per 100 sq. ft. 
of gross floor area, 
excluding kitchen and 
other non-public 
areas 


Existing 
128spaces 


Proposed 
131 spaces 


Yes 


 
Staff Conclusion: Based on the discussion above, the proposed project is consistent with the 
General Plan, Three Corridor Specific Plan, and the City of Pinole Zoning Ordinance.  
 
2. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation. 
 
Staff Comment: The Pinole Terrace Center has one ingress and egress. The main access way is on 
Appian Way. The access on Appian Way is a full access driveway. The Pinole Terrace project has 
provided 131 parking stalls that include six handicapped stalls. The project will provide roll up 
sidewalk along the new construction that will connect to the upper section of the building. Appian 
Way has improved curb, gutter, and sidewalk for pedestrian access in front of the project area. 
There is no change to the improvement on Appian Way. The Site Plan Package (Attachment B) 
shows the sidewalk and crosswalks within the project area.  
 
Staff Conclusion: Based on the discussion above, the proposed project with not create conflicts 
with vehicular, bicycle or transportation modes of circulation.  
 
3. The site layout (orientation and placement of buildings and parking areas), as well as the 
landscaping, lighting, and other development features, are compatible with and complement the 
existing surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area under the general plan and 
applicable specific plans. 
 
Staff Comment:  Since the project is underneath Building One, the orientation of Building One is 
not changing as a part of this project. The parking area below Building One is being re-striped 
from diagonal to 90-degree parking. The change from diagonal parking to 90-degree parking in 
the rear of the building increased the number of parking stalls to 131 parking stalls for the entire 
project area. The overall net parking increased by three parking spaces including the six spaces 
that were lost underneath.   
 
As a part of the redesign of the northwest corner to accommodate a new trash enclosure, an 
existing landscape area will be expanded. All the other existing landscaping areas within the 
complex will remain in accordance with prior approvals. The applicant will install small wall 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 11 


  
 


mounted lights on the rear portion of the building above the doors All other existing lighting 
approved with the original project will remain in place. All the project amenities are located within 
the project area that were approved with prior approvals will not be removed with this project. 
This project as well as the existing project complement the existing surrounding environment and 
ultimate character of the area under the General Plan and the Specific Plan.  
 
Staff Conclusion: Based on the above discussion, the site layout and development features are 
compatible with and complement the existing surrounding environment and ultimate character 
of the area.  
 
4.  Qualifying single-family residential, multi-family residential, and residential mixed-use projects 
shall comply with all relevant standards and guidelines in the city's currently adopted design 
guidelines for residential development. 
 
Staff Comment: Pinole Terrace Center is proposing an addition of commercial square footage to 
a commercial building. There are no residential components to this project. 
 
Staff Conclusion:  Based on the discussion above regarding the use of the building, this finding is 
not applicable to this project. 


 
In conducting comprehensive design review, the Planning Commission must consider the following 
consideration. Each consideration is listed below followed by staff comment and conclusion.  


 
1. Considerations relating to site layout, the orientation and location of building, signs, other 
structures, open spaces, landscaping, and other development features in relation to the physical 
characteristics, zoning, and land use of the site and surrounding properties. 
 
Staff Comment: The revised Site Plan dated January 9, 2023 and revised May 1, 2023 (Attachment 
B), as well as the assessment of the project in this report demonstrates that the project has been 
designed to consider development features applicable to the project site and surrounding 
properties. The rear elevation provides a new architectural theme than the existing complex. The 
front of the building is consistent with and upstairs and down stair design. Figure 5 – Rear 
Elevations shows the rear face of the building that is different than the front elevation. It gives 
the appearance that it is two different buildings even though it is just one building. The enclosed 
area will have the same color scheme as the rest of the building using earthtones (e.g., tan, brown, 
etc.). 


 
  







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 12 


  
 


Figure 5 – Rear Elevations 


 
 
Staff Conclusion: Based on the discussion in the staff report and the design package, the Pinole 
Terrace project is consistent with the relation to site layout, the orientation and location of 
building, signs, other structures, open spaces, landscaping, and other development features in 
relation to the physical characteristics, zoning, and land use of the site and surrounding 
properties. 
 
2. Considerations relating to traffic, safety, and traffic congestion, including the effect of the 
development plan on traffic conditions on abutting streets, the layout of the site with respect to 
locations and dimensions of vehicular and pedestrian entrances, exits, driveways, and walkways, 
the adequacy of off-street parking facilities to prevent traffic congestion, and the circulation 
patterns within the boundaries of the development. 
 
Staff Comment: The Pinole Terrace Center has one main ingress and egress on Appian Way. The 
access to the complex is aligned with Michael Drive to the east to form an intersection. There are 
traffic signals to the north at Appian and Fitzgerald and to the south at Allview and Appian. As 
through traffic on Appian has the right-of-way, traffic entering and exiting the project site do not 
have protected turns. The proposed project will increase the overall commercial square footage 
on site by approximately 5%; the minimal size of the project will have negligible impacts to the 
existing intersection. The Pinole Terrace Center has full sidewalks along Appian Way and connects 
to the existing sidewalks within the center. The Pinole Terrace Center is providing 123 parking 
stalls throughout the entire complex. Condition 21 requires that the applicant will be required to 
add 10 bicycle spaces.  
 
Staff Conclusion: As documented in this report, the proposed project design and conditions of 
approval addresses and considered traffic, safety, traffic congestion and the effect of the 
development on traffic conditions. The project also includes appropriately designed vehicle and 
pedestrian entrance, exits, driveways and walkways.  
 







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 13 


  
 


3. Considerations necessary to ensure that the proposed development is consistent with the 
general plan and all applicable specific plans or other city plans, including, but not limited to, the 
density of residential units. 
 
Staff Comment: As documented in this report, General Plan and Specific Plan policies have been 
identified to evaluate this project’s consistency with the City of Pinole’s General Plan, and the 
Three Corridor Specific Plan. The project has been found to be consistent with the General Plan 
and Three Corridor Specific Plan.  
 
Staff Conclusion: As documented in this report, the project is consistent with the General Plan 
and the Three Corridors Specific Plan.  
 
4. Considerations relating to the availability of city services, including, but not limited to, water, 
sewer, drainage, police, and fire, and whether such services are adequate based upon city 
standards. 
 
Staff Comment: Based on a review of available utility information, this project has availability of 
water, sewer, drainage, police, and fire. The applicant will be required to install new green 
infrastructure in compliance with the most current Contra Costa Clearwater Program Guidelines 
Program as required under the current Regional Water Quality Control Permit. The Project will 
also be required to add trash capture devices basins within interior parking lot prior to the 
issuance of an occupancy permit.  
 
Staff Conclusion:  As documented in this report, City services are available and adequate to serve 
the site. Also, the developer will pay impact fees on a per square foot basis to augment city 
services for this project.  


 


ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 


The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provides several Categorical Exemptions which are 
applicable to categories of projects and activities that the Lead Agency has determined generally do not 
pose a risk of significant impacts on the environment. The subject project consists of an addition of 1,960 
sf to a non-residential building. The project is exempt under Section 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines 
(Class 1, Existing Facilities). 
 


PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 


Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65090 to 65094, public notice must be given at least 10 
days before the scheduled date of a hearing. The notice is required to state the date, time, and place of 
hearing, identify the hearing body, and provide a general explanation of the matter to be considered. 
Notice of this hearing was provided in accordance with PMC Section 17.10.050 in the following manner: 


1- Published in at least one newspaper of general circulation in the city. 
2- Mailed to the owners of property within a radius of 300 feet of the exterior boundaries of 


the property involved in the application.  







STAFF MEMO: PINOLE TERRACE ADDITION 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2023,  PAGE 14 


  
 


3- Mailed to the owner of the subject real property or the owner's authorized agent and to 
each local agency expected to provide water, sewerage, streets, roads, schools, or other 
essential facilities or services to the proposed project. 


4- Posted at City Hall. 
5- Mailed to any person who has filed a written request for notice. 


 


STAFF RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 23-07 approving Comprehensive 
Design Review, and the CEQA Exemption, for the construction of 1,960 square feet of commercial and 
office space located at 2550 Appian Way. 
 


ATTACHMENTS 


A. Draft Resolution 23-07 – with Exhibit A, Conditions of Approval 
B. Development Plan Package, dated January 9, 2023, revised May 1, 2023 







PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 
WITH EXHIBIT A: CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING 


COMPREHENSIVE DESIGN REVIEW (DR23-01) TO CONSTRUCT A 1,960 SQUARE FOOT 


ADDITION OF COMMERCIAL/PROFESSIONAL OFFICE SPACE AT PINOLE TERRACE 


CENTER, 2550 APPIAN WAY (APN 426-391-001) 


 
WHEREAS, Athan Magganas (“Applicant”) filed an application with the City of Pinole for 


Comprehensive Design Review to construct a commercial/office addition (the “Project”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the project is located at 2550 Appian Way, identified as APN 426-391-001; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, the site has a General Plan Land Use Designation of Mixed-Use Sub-Area 


(MUSA); and 


 


WHEREAS, the site has a Specific Plan Land Use designation and Zoning designation 


of Commercial Mixed Use (CMU); and  


 


WHEREAS, a nonresidential addition of 500 square feet or greater and a new 


multifamily residential development are subject to review and approval of Comprehensive 


Design Review; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Project successfully implements numerous policies of the Sustainability, 


Community Character, Land Use and Economic Development, Circulation, Health and Safety, 


Natural Resources and Open Space, and Sustainability Elements of the General Plan; and   


 


WHEREAS, this project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 


pursuant to Section 15301, Class 1, Existing Facilities; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission serves as the approval authority on 


Comprehensive Design Review applications; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the Project in light of the items 


listed in Municipal Code sections 17.12.150(H); and 


 


  WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing was distributed to all property owners within 300 
feet of the project site and a notice was published in the August 4, 2023, edition of the West 
County Times; and  


 
  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on August 14, 


2023 and considered all public comments received, the presentation by City staff, the staff 
report dated August 14, 2023, and all other pertinent documents regarding the proposed 
request.  


 
          NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and correct and 


ATTACHMENT A 







made part of this resolution. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEA”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15301, Class 1, 
Existing Facilities. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole hereby 
approves DR23-01 subject to the Conditions of Approval, applicable to the entire Project, 
attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution, and hereby makes the following findings, for the 
reasons provided in the Staff Report dated August 14, 2023, to Planning Commission and 
incorporated by reference: 
 
Findings 
1. The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies 


with applicable zoning regulations, planned development, master plan or specific plan 
provisions, improvement standards, and other applicable standards and regulations 
adopted by the city. 


 
2. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 


transportation modes of circulation. 
 
3.  The site layout (orientation and placement of buildings and parking areas), as well as the 


landscaping, lighting, and other development features, are compatible with and 
complement the existing surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area 
under the general plan and the Three Corridors Specific Plan; and 


 
4.  Qualifying single-family residential, multi-family residential, and residential mixed-use 


projects shall comply with all relevant standards and guidelines in the city's currently 
adopted design guidelines for residential development.  


 
Additional Findings Pursuant to Section 17.12.150 (H) 
1. Considerations relating to site layout, the orientation and location of building, signs, other 


structures, open spaces, landscaping, and other development features in relation to the 
physical characteristics, zoning, and land use of the site and surrounding properties. 


 
2. Considerations relating to traffic, safety, and traffic congestion, including the effect of the 


development plan on traffic conditions on abutting streets, the layout of the site with 
respect to locations and dimensions of vehicular and pedestrian entrances, exits, 
driveways, and walkways, the adequacy of off-street parking facilities to prevent traffic 
congestion, and the circulation patterns within the boundaries of the development. 


3. Considerations necessary to ensure that the proposed development is consistent with the 
general plan and all applicable specific plans or other city plans, including, but not limited 
to, the density of residential units. 


 
4. Considerations relating to the availability of city services, including, but not limited to, 


water, sewer, drainage, police, and fire, and whether such services are adequate based 
upon city standards. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole on this 14th day of 
August 14, 2023, by the following vote: 


                                            
  







 AYES:  
 NOES: 
 ABSTAIN:      
 ABSENT:  


                   
      __________________________________ 


Adam Benzuly, Chair, 2023-2024               
     


ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________ 
David Hanham, Planning Manager 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           1 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


General Conditions 
 


1.  APPROVAL OF CONDITIONS ON CONSTRUCTION PLANS – These Conditions of 
Approval shall be included or referenced on the coversheet of the project 
improvement plan and building construction plans. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


2.  OCCUPANCY PERMITS – Occupancy permits shall not be granted until 
construction is completed and finalized in accordance with the approved plans 
and conditions of approval required by the City, or a bond has been posted to 
cover all costs of the unfinished work as agreed to by the Community 
Development Department. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


3.  GENERAL – All public improvements shall be made in accordance with the 
latest adopted Contra Costa County Standard Drawings and Specifications. All 
work shall conform to the applicable City ordinances. Good housekeeping 
practices shall be observed at all times during the course of construction. The 
storing of goods and materials on the sidewalk and/or street will not be 
allowed unless a special permit is issued. The owner’s representative in charge 
shall be at the job site during all working hours. 
 
 


 


During 
Construction 


Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           2 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


4.  PERMITS REQUIRED BY OTHER AGENCIES – The applicant shall obtain all 
permits that may be required by one or more federal, State, or local agency, 
service provider, or easement holder including but not limited to the following:  
State Department of Fish and Wildlife, Caltrans. Army Corps of Engineers, Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District, Kinder Morgan, EBMUD, and PG&E, 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, County Environmental 
Health, and the West Contra Costa Unified School District. If project is within 
jurisdiction of any of these agencies, verification of permit or waiver of permit 
must be given to the Community Development Department prior to issuance of 
any City permits. If the City is required to be party to the permit and an 
application and fee is required, the applicant shall reimburse the City for its 
cost. A Notice of Intent must be issued by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board before a permit can be issued and a Notice of Termination must be 
issued at the end of the project by the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued. 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


5.  EXERCISE OF ENTITLEMENTS – The applicant has two (2) years to exercise the 
entitlement. Requests for extensions shall be in accordance with Section 
17.10.100.  
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


6.  TENANTS:  Prior to operation of the new buildings, all tenants shall obtain 
business licenses and sign permits 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           3 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


Public Works Conditions 
 


7.  PERMITS, BONDS, AND INSURANCE – The applicant shall obtain an 
encroachment permit, posting the required bonds and insurance, for all work 
to be done in the City’s right-of-way. This encroachment permit shall be 
obtained prior to the issuance of a building permit and prior to any work being 
done in the City’s right-of-way. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Encroachment 


Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


8. R
E 
REFUSE AREA AND DESIGN – The project shall provide for service by Republic 
Services. The area and access to trash, recycling, and green waste containers 
shall be approved in advance by Republic Services. 
 


Prior to the 
issuance of 


Building Permit 


Public Works 
Department 


 


9.  EROSION CONTROL PLAN – The applicant shall submit an erosion control plan 
in accordance with the City’s Grading Ordinance (PMC §15.36.190) when 
grading is performed during winter season (October 1 through April 15).  For all 
sites over one acre, in accordance with the City's Erosion Control Ordinance 
(PMC §08.20) the applicant shall submit: 


a. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
b. Strom Water Control Plan (SCP) Certified by an Architect or Engineer. 
c. Operation and Maintenance. 


 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           4 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


10.  PARKING LOTS – The applicant shall submit plans for parking lots showing 
proper grading, drainage, and conformance to City engineering standards. The 
plans shall be prepared by a registered Civil Engineer and be approved by the 
Public Works Director. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


11.  MATERIAL HAULING – The applicant shall submit a proposed material hauling 
route and schedule. Said submittal shall be approved by the City Engineer prior 
to issuance of a building or site development permit. All material hauling 
activities including but not limited to, adherence to approved route, hours of 
operation, dust control and street maintenance shall be the responsibility of 
the applicant (as per Section 15.36.080 of the PMC). Violation of such may be 
cause for suspension of work. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


12.  TREATMENT PLANT CAPACITY CONTRIBUTION – The applicant shall pay sewer 
connection fees pursuant to PMC § 13.05.420.  
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


13.  SEWER USE FEES – The applicant shall pay sewer use fees pursuant to PMC 
§13.05.430.  


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


14.  CHARGES FOR PUBLIC WORKS – The applicant shall deposit funds with the City 
to pay for all engineering, inspection and survey services that may be required 
during construction of the project in accord with PMC §13.05.430   


Prior to issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           5 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


15.  INSPECTIONS – The applicant shall notify the Public Works Department at least 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to staring any work pertaining to on-site drainage 
facilities, grading, or paving; all work in the City’s right-of-way as per Section 
15.36.230 of the Municipal Code. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


16.  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES – The applicant must agree to install all utility 
service, including telephone, electric power, and other communications lines 
underground as per Chapter 13.16 of the Municipal Code. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


17.  DRAINAGE – All drainage shall be directed to the public street with a minimum 
grade of two (2) percent over landscaped areas and one-half (½) percent over 
paved areas. Where necessary, sidewalk drains shall be provided to direct the 
water under the sidewalk and through the curb. 
 
Trash Capture Devices shall be installed in all drainage in-lets and shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Public Works Director or his designee.  
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


18.  DRAINAGE PLANS - The applicant shall prepare a construction drainage plan 
and final drainage plan for Public Works Department review and approval. The 
construction drainage plan will show how drainage will be handled during 
construction. The final drainage plan will show how drainage will be handled 
after construction is complete. The final plans shall demonstrate capacity to 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           6 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


manage stormwater runoff. Site design shall avoid drainage of water from one 
property onto another property and shall be subject to approval by the City 
Engineer. 


19.  SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR - The applicant shall repair and replace 
to existing City standards, any sidewalk, curb and gutter that is damaged now 
or during construction of this project. A field visit shall be scheduled with 
Community Development Department and Public Works Department staff prior 
to the issuance of any construction permits to document pre-construction 
conditions in the field. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Public Works 
Department 


 


20.  WHEELCHAIR RAMP(S) – The applicant shall construct all wheelchair ramp(s) in 
accordance with applicable California Building Code and ADA requirements. 
 


During 
Construction 


Community 
Development 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 


21.  BICYCLE PARKING. The applicant is required to install 10 bicycle parking spaces 
within the development. 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


22.  EV PARKING – The applicant shall install wiring for seven parking stalls and 
provide two EV chargers. 


Prior to 
Occupancy  


Community 
Development/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           7 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


23.  GRADING AND DEMOLITION PLANS – The applicant shall obtain City approval 
for the project grading and demolition plans prior to issuance of building 
permits. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Public Works 
Department 


 


24.  SEWER CONNECTION – The project is within the service area of the 
Pinole/Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant. The proposed project shall have 
a unique connection to the public sewer collection system. The connection to 
the sewer system will require a permit from the City of Pinole, the payment of 
sewer users’ fees (see Condition 19), and payment of a sewer connection fee 
(see Condition 18) prior to the issuance of building permit. 
 


Prior to the 
Issuance of 


Building Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


25.  CERTIFIED GRADED PAD – A California-Licensed Engineer shall certify that the 
graded construction pads have been adequately compacted and designed to 
support the proposed buildings. 
 


 


Ongoing through 
Construction 


Public Works 
Department 


 


26.  CONSTRUCTION SITE INFORMATION – A construction sign shall be installed on 
at the construction site that has contains contact person’s name, mobile phone 
number, and email address shall be posted on the project site during the 
duration of construction. The property address shall be clearly marked during 
the construction process. 
 


Ongoing through 
Construction 


Public Works 
Department 


 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           8 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


27.  DEBRIS REMOVAL – All building debris shall be disposed of outside the City of 
Pinole to a legal dump site. 


During 
Construction 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


28.  CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES – The following provisions shall be followed during 
site excavation, public works, and building construction activities for the 
project: 
 


a. Work is restricted to between 7:00A.M. and 5:00 P.M. on weekdays. 
Work is restricted on federal holidays. Work is allowed on holidays 
occurring on weekdays that are recognized by the City of Pinole, but not 
acknowledged federally which include Cesar Chavez's Birthday and the 
Day After Thanksgiving, but no inspections will be performed 


 
b. Earth haul and materials delivery to and from the site will be prohibited 


between the hours of 7:00 - 9:00 A.M. and 3:00 - 6:00 P.M. 
 
c. All construction vehicles should be properly maintained and equipped 


with exhaust mufflers and meet State and Federal standards. 
 
d. Newly disturbed soil surfaces shall be watered down regularly by a 


water truck maintained on site during all day light hours and 
construction grading activity shall be discontinued in wind conditions 


During 
Construction 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           9 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


greater than 10 miles per hour. 
 
e. Construction activities shall be scheduled so that paving and foundation 


placement begin immediately upon completion of grading operation. 
 
f. All excavated materials shall be covered with a tarp during transit to and 


from the site. 


29.  CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN – The Applicant shall submit to 
the Community Development Department a pre-construction waste 
management plan prior to the issuance of any construction permit to satisfy 
the CALGreen Building Code requirements. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


30.  CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT REPORT – DEBRIS REMOVAL – The 
applicant shall complete post-construction waste management report for 
review and approval by the Community Development Department prior to final 
inspection to satisfy CALGreen Building Code Requirements. All building debris 
shall be properly disposed of outside the City of Pinole. 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


31.  PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING – The applicant’s construction contractor(s) 
shall attend a pre-construction meeting as needed with City Staff to coordinate 
satisfaction of conditions of approval during construction.  
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Community 
Development s 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           10 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


32.  STANDARD DRAWINGS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT – All public improvements 
shall be made in accordance with the latest adopted Contra Costa County 
Standard Drawings and Specifications. All work shall conform to the applicable 
City Ordinances. Best Construction Management Practices shall be observed at 
all times during the course or construction. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


33.  CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT – The storing of goods and materials on the 
sidewalk and/or street will not be allowed unless a special permit is issued. The 
project site shall be kept free of litter and all construction equipment and 
materials will be secured at the end of each construction day. The applicant’s 
representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours. The 
public streets adjacent to construction activity shall be maintained in a clean 
and orderly condition to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.  
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Permits 


Public Works 
Department 


 


34.  PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTIONS—The applicant shall notify the Public Works 
Department at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the starting any work 
pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading, or paving, as well as any work 
in the City’s Right-of-Way as per Section 15.36.230 of the PMC. The applicant 
shall arrange all inspections with the Public Works Inspector. 
 


 


 


During 
Construction  


Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           11 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


Community Development Conditions 
  


35.  UTILITIES – All electrical, telephone, water, C.A.T.V. and similar utility 
services which provide service to the subject building shall be installed 
underground. All transformers, meter boxes, etc., shall be screened from 
view wherever possible. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 


36.  EXTERIOR MATERIAL AND COLORS – All exterior materials and colors shall 
reflect those in the plan set approved by the Planning Commission. Once 
installed, all improvements are to be maintained in accordance with the 
approved plans. Any changes which affect the exterior character shall be 
resubmitted to the Community Development Department for review and 
approval. Minor changes may be approved by the Planning Manager. Any 
changes determined by the Community Development Department to be 
significant may be referred to the Planning Commission after conferring with 
the Chair of the Planning Commission. 
 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


37.  PARKING MANAGEMENT PLAN – The applicant shall submit a final parking 
management plan for review and approval by the Planning Manager.  
 


 


 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           12 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


38.  COMPACT PARKING – Each parking space designated for compact cars shall be 
identified with a pavement marking reading “Compact Only”, or its equivalent.  
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


39.  LIGHTING – The plan set shall include final lighting fixtures proposed on site. 
Lighting shall be consistent with the illumination levels and requirements under 
Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 17.46, or as otherwise required for the Building 
Division and Police Department for code compliance and safety. 
Any lighting used shall be so arranged as to reflect the light away from 
adjoining properties or public streets.  
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Occupancy 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


40.  MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT – All mechanical devices and their component 
parts, such as air conditioners, evaporative coolers, exhaust fans, or similar 
equipment located wholly or partially on the roof or wall shall be screened 
from view. All wall mounted heating units or air conditioners shall be flush-
mounted or screened from view. 
 


During 
Construction 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


41.  MASTER SIGN PROGRAM – The owner/applicant shall submit a master sign 
program for the property for review and action by Planning Commission. 
 


Prior to Building 
Permit Final 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


42.  VENTS, GUTTERS, AND FLASHING, ETC. – All vents, gutters, downspout, 
flashings, electrical conduits, etc., shall be painted to match the color of the 
adjacent surface. 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           13 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


43.  TRASH ENCLOSURES – All trash enclosures shall be constructed of sturdy, 
opaque materials, which are in harmony with the architecture of the nearest 
building and shall meet applicable Contra Costa County Health Department and 
City requirements. Trash enclosures shall be covered. 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


44.  NOISE STANDARDS - The noise standards established in the General Plan shall 
be applicable to all developments. These noise standards apply to exterior and 
are: 


RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL     
 


INDUSTRIAL       


60 dBA (Day) 65dBA (Day & Eve) 75 dBA (All) 
55 dBA (Eve) 60 dBA (Night)  
50 dBA (Night)   


 
Day: 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.; Evening: 7 p.m. to 10 p.m.; Night: 10 p.m. to 7 a.m. 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


45.  SCHOOL, GROWTH AND PARK IMPACT FEES – Prior to issuance of a building 
permit, the applicant shall pay all applicable school, growth (as per Chapter 
3.20 of the Municipal Code) and park (as per Chapter 16.28 of the Municipal 
Code) impact fee. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


46.  SUBREGIONAL TRANSPORTATION MITIGATION PROGRAM (STMP) FEE – Prior 
to issuance of a building permit for new construction the applicant shall pay the 
applicable STMP fee, pursuant to PMC §16.30. 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           14 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


47.  DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE – The applicant shall pay all applicable 
development impact fees prior to issuance of the building permit 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


48.  COST ESTIMATE – The applicant shall obtain a cost estimate of construction 
permitting, including plan check and impacts fees, prior to submitting an 
application for a building permit. 
 


Prior to 
Submittal of a 


Building Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department  


 


49.  GENERAL LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS - The Applicant shall prepare a 
detailed final landscape plan. The final landscaping plan shall be prepared by a 
landscape architect, registered in California, and shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Department for review and approval prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. The landscape plan shall comply with Chapter 
15.54 and Chapter 17.38 of the Municipal Code and shall include the following: 
 


a. Sizes, species, locations of all plant materials. 
 


b. Location of all trees (6 inches in diameter or greater). 
 


c. Irrigation plan indicating all components of the irrigation system 
including sprinklers and other outlets, valves, backflow prevention 
devices, controllers, and piping. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           15 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


d. All trees to be a minimum of 15 gallon, double staked and all proposed 
shrubs on site shall be a minimum of 5 gallon. 
 


e. Native tree species shall be used as much as possible in the planting of 
new trees. 


50.  LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE – The property owner shall ensure landscaping 
areas are maintained and that dead trees and vegetation shall be replaced. 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


51.  WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE – The project shall demonstrate compliance 
with water efficient landscape requirements pursuant to Chapter 15.54 of the 
PMC for review with the building permit plans. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


52.  LANDSCAPING CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION – A Certificate of Completion 
shall be submitted by either the signer of the landscape design plan, the signer 
of the irrigation design plan, or the licensed landscape contractor certifying 
that the landscape project has been installed per the approved Landscape 
Documentation Package. 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


53.  TREE REMOVAL – The applicant shall note the location of all mature trees (4 
inches in diameter at breast height (measured 4.5 feet above natural grade) or 
greater) to be removed from the project site and submit a tree permit 
application prior to issuance of a building permit. 
 


Prior to the 
Issuance of 


Building Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           16 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


54.  CONFORMANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS – All building permit drawings and 
subsequent construction shall substantially conform to the approved planning 
application drawings.  Any modifications must be reviewed by the Planning 
Manager who shall determine whether the modification requires additional 
approval of the Planning Commission or City Council. 
 


Prior to Issuance 
of Building 


Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


55.  MODIFICATION OF APPROVED PLANS – Failure to obtain prior approval to 
modify the approved plans may result in a fine equal to double the original 
planning application permit fee and/or withholding of the occupancy permit 
until such time as the modification(s) to the plans has been reviewed by the 
Planning Commission or City Council. 
 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


56.  VIOLATION/PENALTY – Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, 
agent employee or otherwise, violating any of the provisions in Title 17 of the 
Municipal Code or any condition of an approval, permit or license granted 
pursuant to the provisions of this same title shall be deemed guilty of an 
infraction, punishable on the first offense by a fine not exceeding one hundred 
dollars, and on the second offense by a fine not exceeding two hundred dollars 
and on the third offense and subsequent violation by a fine not exceeding five 
hundred dollars and shall be deemed guilty of a separate offense for each and 
every day during any portion of which any violation of this title is committed, 
continued or permitted by such person, firm or corporation. 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           17 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


57.  STREET ADDRESS ASSIGNMENT – An Address Assignment Plan for the project 
shall be submitted for review and approval and shall be reflected in the 
submitted building plans. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


58.  SITE MAINTENANCE – The construction site shall be cleaned of garbage and 
debris on a daily basis and maintained in an orderly fashion. All construction 
equipment shall be secured at the end of each day of construction. 


Ongoing through 
end of 


construction 


Community 
Development 
Department 


 


Building Conditions 
 


   


59.  BUILDING CODES – At time of issuance of building permits, the building shall 
comply with Chapter 15 of the Municipal Code and State Title 24 and the U.S. 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Building Division  


60.  INSPECTIONS – The applicant shall arrange all inspections with the Building 
Division, Fire Department, and Public Works Department.  All Building Division 
inspection requests shall be made at least 24 hours in advance. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Occupancy 


Permits 


Building Division  


61.  GEOTECHNICAL/SOILS REPORT - A geotechnical/soils report containing all 
design recommendations of footings, retaining walls and any other information 
pertinent to the soil condition shall be required and submitted with the permit 
application. The soils report shall be prepared by a licensed soils engineer or 
geologist. 


Prior to issuance 
of Permits 


Community 
Development 
Department / 
Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           18 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


62.  PLAN CHECK FEES – A plan check fee shall be paid to the Building Division at 
time of submission of plans pursuant to PMC §15.02.060 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Building Division  


63.  CONTRACTORS – Contractors must identify all subcontractors prior to issuance 
of a building permit.  Each subcontractor must obtain a city business license 
prior to issuance of a building permit or commencing work pursuant to PMC 
§5.04.020. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Building Division  


64.  SMOKE DETECTORS – Smoke detectors are required in all commercial units 
pursuant to PMC §12.10(a) and applicable Building Code. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Occupancy 


Permits 


Building Division  


65.  DEBRIS BOX – The Applicant shall ensure that prior to commencing 
construction a contractor shall place on-site a minimum 10 cubic yard “debris 
box” for receiving and holding of all construction debris.” 
 


Prior to 
Construction 


Building Division  


66.  CONSTRUCTION NUISANCE PREVENTION – The following provisions shall be 
followed during all construction activities for the project. 
 


a. Prior to any earth hauling operations, the applicant shall submit a 
Hauling Plan for review and approval by the City Engineer.  
 


b. When Pinole Middle and/or West County Mandarin School (1575 Mann 


Ongoing Building Division  







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           19 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


Drive) is in session, all construction related traffic on Appian Way shall 
be prohibited during designated pick-up and drop off hours. 


 
c. All construction vehicles shall be properly maintained and equipped 


with exhaust and mufflers that meet state and federal standards.  
 


d. Newly disturbed soil surfaces shall be watered down regularly by a 
water truck maintained on-site during all daylight hours discontinue 
when winds speed reach 15mph 


Police Department Conditions 
 


   


67.  CROSSWALK – The crosswalk between the handicapped parking and the new 
office building should be raised or delineated with some sort of rumble 
strip/botts dots to draw attention to it and slow vehicles down, as feasible. 


Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 


68.  LANDSCAPING 
a. All landscaping shall be of a variety and type that upon reaching 


maturity will not provide concealment for a human being and will not 
grow to cover windows, doors, light fixtures or addresses. 


b. Bushes/dense vegetation trimmed to 2’ or less 
c. Trim tree canopies to 6’ or higher 
d. All trees shall be planted a sufficient distance from the buildings so that 


upon reaching maturity they will not provide roof access. 


Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           20 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


69.  PUBLIC AREA LIGHTING  
a. All exterior doorways, stairwells, pathways, walkways, hallways, and 


courtyards for commercial and industrial buildings shall be lighted to a 
minimum of 2-foot candles, minimum maintained, measured at 5 feet 
above ground. 


b. Parking areas for commercial and industrial buildings shall be lighted to 
a standard of 2 foot candles, minimum measured at ground level where 
beams overlap. 


c. Except as otherwise noted, all security light fixtures shall be mounted a 
minimum of 10 feet above ground. 


d. All required lighting shall be equipped with a photoelectric cell or 
equivalent technology to turn it on at sunset and off at daybreak. 


e. All areas where video camera surveillance is required shall meet the 
standards for the camera selected and approved by the Police 
Department. 


f. Lighting shall be on a timer for evening hours. 
g. The reart parking lot is dark. The recommendation is to update lighting 


to LEDs and following the current foot candle requirement as part of 
the overall project. 


h. All lighting shall be down lit and shielded. 
 
 


Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           21 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


70.  VIDEO SURVEILLANCE – External video surveillance for the common areas shall 
be included. Management and employees should know how to operate the 
system and we recommend playback of files be compatible with Windows 
Media Player. 
 


Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 


71.  RADIO RECEPTION - Prior to occupancy, the owner shall contact the Police 
Department to provide Police with the opportunity to test radio reception in 
the buildings to identify any reception issue. 
 


Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 


72.  TENANT COLLABORATION WITH POLICE – The owner shall direct future lower 
level tenants of the office building addition (designed as a possible bank) to 
work with the Police Department to include: 
a. Obtaining emergency contact information 
b. A recommended security plan to include an alarm system and video 
surveillance system 
 


Prior to Tenant 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 


73.  VIDEO SURVEILLANCE – Video surveillance cameras may be required for 
commercial complexes Placement of the video surveillance cameras will be 
established by the Police Department after review of the plans and intended 
use of the project. These cameras shall be capable of being monitored from the 
Police Department upon completion of project. 
 


Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 


Police 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           22 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


Fire Department Conditions of Approval 
 


   


74.  FIRE CODE CONFORMANCE – Compliance with the 2019 CFC (California Fire 
Code), 2019 CBC, (California Building Code) the 20149 NFPA 13 Standards, the 
NFPA 72 standards, and all local ordinances as they apply to the occupancy and 
use of the proposed structure and shall be enforced for the scope of work and 
occupancies of the project redevelopment plan.  
 
Compliance with all other NFPA standards is required where applicable and to 
the satisfaction of the Fire Marshall and/or Fire Chief. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Fire  
Department 


 


75.  CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR FIRE PREVENTION – Prior to issuance of a building 
permit, building construction plans and plans for fire extinguishing system shall 
be submitted for Fire Code plan check. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Fire  
Department 


 


76.  TURNING RADIUS – Fire apparatus turning radius shall be in compliance with 
the Contra Costa County Standard to accommodate the largest fire truck 
apparatus. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Fire  
Department 


 


77.  FIRE ACCESS – Fire Department access hall include however not be limited to 
painting of red fire lanes and posting of No Parking Fire Land signage (TBD with 
the final site plan review). 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Fire  
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-07 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           23 of 23 Pinole Terrace 2550 Appian Way                                                                            
August 14, 2023  Design Review (DR) 23-01                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


78.  ADDRESS – Addresses shall be a minimum of 6” on a contrasting background 
visible from the street pre/post construction. Exterior elevated corners of 
structures shall have 12” numbers. 
 


Prior to Building 
Permit Final 


Fire  
Department 


 


79.  KNOX BOX – A Knox Box shall be required to be located at the main front 
entrance door. A Knox Switch shall be required for all electronic gates. Knox 
Padlocks shall be allowed for any auxiliary purposes. Additional Knox 
Boxes/Other may be required depending on the project. 
 
 


Prior to Building 
Permit Final 


Fire  
Department 


 


80.  WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM – Prior to issuance of a building permit there shall be 
an approved and tested water supply system capable of supplying the required 
fire flow as determined by the Fire Chief or Fire Marshall. Water supply system 
for staged construction shall provide required fire flows. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Fire  
Department 


 


81.  FIRE PREVENTION FEES AND INSPECTION – Prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy or final building inspection, the applicant shall pay all applicable 
fees in accordance with the City’s Master Fee Schedule and obtain an 
inspection from the Fire Department.  All meetings and inspections shall 
require a 48-hour advanced notice. 
 


Prior to issuance 
of Building 


Permit 


Fire  
Department 


 


 







--- ---------- -


GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS 
TWo (2) Commercial Units (N) built in the (E) Basement Carport 


These "General Specs" apply to all new (N) construction concerning the creation of two 
(2) Commercial Units (N) in the (E) Basement (Carport) area as shown in this plan. The
specified (N) work shall be built as required by the Owner, The City of Pinole, and as
designed by California Licensed Civil Engineer #41887 - Kenneth S. Chainey, P.E.
(KSCPE). The City of Pinole Building inspector shall make all required City inspections.
Special Inspection of specified portions {holes for epoxy-set anchors, reinforcement, and
anchor bolts) of the project by the Engineer-of-Record (EOR) KSCPE is required. The
City of Pinole requires Planning Approval and a Building Permit for the work.
All materials, workmanship, and work (construction) done by the Owner or the Builder 
shall conform to the "California Building Standards Code" (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 24, All "applicable Parts"). The "2022 Codes" are based upon the 
2021 "International Building Code," but have been amended by the State of California for 
construction within the State. Applicable Building "Code" List: 


Part 1: 2022 CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ("CAC'22")
Part 2:
Part 3:
Part 4:
Part 5: 


2022 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE ("CBC'22," when applicable) 
2022 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE ("CEC'22," when applicable) 
2022 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE ("CMC'22," when applicable) 
2022 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE ("CPC'22" when applicable). 


,,NOTES 
\1 ------------------, I 


ALL (N) WORK SHALL BE DONE WITHIN 
THE (E) BUILDING FOOTPRINT. 


• -• ,., '-r-""C-i-,,:,Prl,�
�-----�---:--=:-:-:-:-:-:-:==---


NO PROPERTY LINE CHANGES; 


NO WORK IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY;


NO WORK OVER PROPERTY LINES; 


NO WORK ON NEIGHBORING LOTS; 


NO WORK IN THE EASEMENTS .. 


THE SET OF PLANS, CALCULATIONS, AND 
SPECIAL INSPECTION LETTERS THAT ARE 
MARKED "JOBSITE COPY'' MUST BE KEPT ON 
THE JOB SITE AT ALL TIMES. 
IT IS ILLEGAL TO MAKE CHANGES ON SAME 
WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM 
KSCPE AND THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT. 


STOCKPILE, REMOVE, AND DISPOSE OF ALL •·
CONSTRUCTION-RELATED DEBRIS IN A SAFE 
AND LEGAL MANNER, PER THE BMPs. � 


rx\,Ls.: 
?' 


(N) COMMERCIAL UNITS (2)


. 2550 APPIAN WAY 


PINOLE 


i NOTICE- This is not an official land survey- /Nl vm A--cr.&-23l g;u;· ST&u
Land surveys are not within the scope of 


_m-_�J��-J2� � g{,�· �y,l.,ill/·.KSCPE's services. The Owner or the Builder is 
____ ___ _ _ PS".-- . __responsible for obtaining Boundary or Land 


Surveys from a State of California licensed �D2£.:'.'.:ld:LADINC1 A-REA . 
Land Surveyor, if one is required. 


. . 


./ 


(;,'&,/ 
'l.l' 


// ' ' 
.


i/�JJ_✓ -·_· �/- ' ·.
-· , (: .. .


fl. . . \ 


\ 


, 
> t:'.
, �, 


✓-�7 ,/ / 
, ,·"1- /. ,� 


,;i'? 
_1/ 


" 


1
' El 1$1n;kf: j 1�


1


�(d<o et::© x N A-WI 19 


/ i/ 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
CREATE TWO (2) COMMERCIAL UNITS BELOW THE (E) BUILDING BY ENCLOSING THE (E) 
LOWER LEVEL "OPEN PARKING STALLS" WITH (N) WOOD FRAMED WALLS PER THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS PLAN. THE (N) UNCONDITIONED, SEMI-FINISHED, COMMERCIAL 
UNITS (LABELED AS 2550A & 2550B) SHALL BE "FINISHED" BY FUTURE (F) TENANTS. 


PROJECT SCOPE 
• The Owner or the Owner's selected builder/contractor ("the Builder") shall obtain all the necessary


permits and approvals to complete this voluntary "(N) COMMERCIAL UNITS (2)" project for the (E)
"open parking stalls (carport area) below the (E) building. The Builder's work shall conform to the
2022 California Residential Code (CRC'22), the 2022 California Building Code (CBC'22) where
applicable, the City of Pinole ("the City") Municipal Code, the direction of the Project Engineer
Kenneth S. Chainey, P.E. ("KSCPE"), and this plan. 


• The (E) lower level "tenant space" (Unit 2550C) adjacent to the carport Area-of-Work (AOW) was
permitted and built back in 1991; this unit is Not-in-Scope {NIS). The (N) COMMERCIAL UNITS (2)
will complete the enclosure of the remaining carport area. Although the (N) walls will not carry any
of the verical load of the building above, they will provide some added lateral shear resistance.


• Please refer to the General Specifications for other general project requirements for this "limited
scope" project. Please note that this project will not create or alter any conditioned space, change
the (E) footprint, significantly change the building elevation, nor extend over any property lines. No
work in the interior of the commercial units is within the scope of this plan UON. This "limited
scope" (owner limited) project is a voluntary upgrade for the subject lower level carport areas (only).


• Bore through the (E) carport slabs and install (N) epoxy-set anchorage into the underlying (E) 
reinforced concrete foundations as shown in this plan. Install (N) epoxy-set rebar dowels which will 
help anchor the (N) foundation stems for the (N) COMMERCIAL UNITS (2) per this plan. 


• Form, fabricate, and cast (N) reinforced concrete foundation stems on the (E) slab and foundations
in the carport AOW per this plan. Strip the temporarty forms and install permanent pressure treated
mudsills, anchored to the foundations, per this plan. The carport slabs (E) become basement slabs.


• Construct the plan specified (N) waterproof exterior lower level walls and the (N) interior basement 
walls on the (N) foundation stems per this plan. The (N) walls shall anchor the the (E) round 
concrete pillars supporting the rear (north-west) sideof the (E) building at the lower level. The (N)
walls shall also structurally connect the (E) main floor framing of the subject wood framed building. 


• Install two (2) doors and two (2) windows (all Owner provided) in the exterior wall of each (N)
basement unit (2550A & 2550B). The (N) stucco wall finish and colors shall match (E) unit 2550C.


• Install the specified (N) electrical wiring, lights, receptacles, and switches for the two (N)
commercial units per this plan. Plumbing, HVAC, and other unspecified possible utility work is NIS.


• Provide the City required lower parking area improvements specified in this plan. Restripe the (E) 
"diagonal" large car stalls to be (N) perpendicular small car stalls with a (N) double "car accessible" 
stall with a striped loading area and ADA accessible aisles per this plan and per the City of Pinole. 


• The Builder shall follow all requirements of the Best Management Practices for Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control ("BMPs") to prevent soil, debris, and any contaminating material from 
entering the sanitary sewer or storm drain system, any-r1-aiura1··water bodies: or otherwise 
contaminating the natural environment outside of the area of work. 


• Remove stockpiled material and construction-related debris from the site. Dispose all debris in a
legal manner; recycle removed and excess construction materials where possible. Unspecified


e:; ·. 
�..--,_._5,,,...�.,,,_Q,.....,...._,_.,...E . 
.;,CAL£, t 11 � uf
7;;s-N6ito 
Joe, NO, 


A:r1 &W-tt-1 


SHEIT NO.


I_{& 
o F ±t:i 1-1 Ens


' 


- - - -- - -- __,J 


Attachment B

















		Structure Bookmarks

		 AGENDA FOR THE 










